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REPORT
ey ' OF THE g S
JOINT COMMITTEHR,

APPOINTED BY THE EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, TO INVESTIGATE THE
AFFAIRS OF THE IOWA HOSPITAL FOR THE INSANE. i P

The Committee appointed by a Joint Resolution of the Senate
and House of Representatives to investigate the affairs of the
Hospital tor the Insane, have discharged that duty and now re
port. = » .

‘The Committee proceeded to Mt. Pleasant, and decided upon the
tollowing as the proper points and subjects of investigation and
inquiry. % : EY

1. Why the Asylum has cost so much greater amount of money
than the previous Legislation so manifestly contemplated, and the
people had just reason to expect. - .

2. Whether the amount appropriated has been fairly and hon'
estly expended in erecting the building. =

8. The probable and approximate estimate of the cost of com-
pleting the Institution as originally designed.

4. Whether there had been any abuse or bad faith on the part
ot the Board or officers in disbursing the money to the labor-
ers and others, who have furnished material and labor for the
building. T , : : -

1. In the first place your Committec find that the Commission-
ors appointed by the act of the Legislature of 1855, visited the
eastern States for the purpose of examining other Institutions ,pf:
this character, and to procure a place tor the contemplated build.
ing. ‘That a plan was procured from Jonathan Preston of Boston,
on the recommendation ot Doctors Bell and Kirkledge, from which
the present structure has been erected. That no cu:re{'ct: or even
approximate estimate in detail has ever been made out, and that -
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the Commissioners relied upon mere opinion as to the probable
cost, leaving a margin of one hundred thousand dollars between
the mimnium and the maximum cost of the building. The plan ob-
tained was for a first class Institution with all the modern improve-
} ments, and is said to be the largest and most perfect building of
the kind in the United States.

The Commissioners evidently acted almost wholly with refer-
ence to the character of the Institution when completed, and were
thoughtless and indifferent as to the ultimate cost.

They intended that the expenditures should be carefully made,
and that the State should receive a full consideration for every dol-
lar expended. The Commissioners hoped for low figures for the
expense, but resolved upon erecting a first class institution. In
this they may have deceived themselves as to the cost, but they
have most certainly deceived the people, and disappointed a just
expectation of the expense of erecting the bmldmg and time of its
completion.

Had a truthful and fmr estimate of the expense ot erectmg thls
building been presented to the Legislature, no une can believe that
it would have received their approbation or obtained a dollar of
approprmtlon

The fault in this matter may be said to rest with both the Leg-
islature and the Commissioners. No appropnatlon should ever
have been made until a complete plan and estimate had been
made out and submitted to the Legislatare. On the other hand
the Commissioners should never have expended a dollar until such
plan and estimate was made, and under no circumstances should
the Commissioners have proceeded to expend the appropriation un-.
til they were fully satisfied that the cost of the building would not
exceed the 1ust expectations of the Legislature and the people.

Your committee can hardly credit the anpposmon that the Com-
missioners have acted with perfect candor in asking the Legisla- -
ture to make appropriations heretofore. They have not told the
whole trath. , They have produced the beliet that the expenditures
would be lar ely less than the facts would justity. . ‘

‘They lave induced t.he ‘belief that the institution would be
completed and ready for the receptmn of patients years before
that event can occur.

They have camed out their ta\ronte measure by proounng a
poiicy, which, in its tendency, compels. the Legislature to make«
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heavy and unexpected appropriations, as the only means ot saving
past expenditures from total loss.

Aeccording to the testimony of Mr. Winslow, the Superinten-
dent, he, by general estimate, expected to erect the building, &e.,
at an éxpense of $300,000, when it was designed to make the
walls of brick; but when that was changed, and stone was sub-
stituted, he estimated.the cost at $360,000. These opinions and
estimates of the Superintendent were never made known to the
Legislature, althongh well understood by the Commissioners.

The manner of conductmg the financial matters, has been vari-
ons.  From March 17th, to Oct. 80, 1855, the Board obtained ‘the
warrants from the Anditor and paid them out. The following
sums were obtained in this manner: :

JRANEY FTth. - Haldin. Bwans. . v e $4,325 00
dorY:“do < Fred. OMen. S ot e re e b S i e 100 00
do’" “do - O, L, Olarke, Tressnrer, .1 ..0: 04000 1,500 00

$5,925 00

After these sums were obtained, Mr. Presley Saunders was ap-
pointed Treasurer, and M. L. Edwards, Secretary. The system
then adopted required Mr. Winslow, the Superintendent, to certi-
fy to persons turnishing labor or material, the amount, &c., which
was presented to the Secretary by the party entitied, and the Sec-
retary drew an order or check upon the Treasurer for the amounnt.
These were called Asylum checks, and were negotiable by deliv-
ery. Some of these checks were made so as to have preference
over others, as to payment ; but this was only done in cases where
immediate payment was a necessity.

- The Commissioners made their orders upon the State Treunry
dlrectly in favor of Mr. Saunders, who drew all the money that
had been received since Oct. 30th, 1855. The amounts and dates
of these allowances in favor of Mr Saunders as Treasurer, are as
follows :

1855. I
October30.... ... ... B 2 A8 272 s 52> g .. 92,075 00
I B T L e O O e u ST as damtaes ... 5,000 00

1856. A 4 A
April 22 ........... ... 10,000 00
AUgugye8 o7 PYEE, PN AT AL & EEREE 10,000 00
August 14. ... .......oceviiiiiiniiean, ces £ OTOY U 5,000 00
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I I e A b a2 T TR S g o 5,000 00
R v o e SRl e SR N 2,000 00
P T e Gt SO i S e 6,166 54

1857.
January 9. 5 orders of $10,000 each.. ........... 50,000 00
B e Er - £ oant o By SR W 0 SR 40,000 00
T T R S R S S 4,171 88
Delcseggber g R R i SRR R 9,000 00
L S e R N R i R R NSl Sl 2,614 10
SRR R o i AR, duE Lo G e . i 499 80
ﬁarch - B SRR T o iy R it 1,292 45
May 2‘2; ........................................ 7,168 15

e b T e L 1,551 70
g:yg: ........................................ 5,045 22

BRI e 8550 v s bv o prninir T ek s o110 61 5,580.88
gnne B T s 7% v ca & new o s s s JUR ST O 11,028 74
J:g ........................................ 12,960 14

....................................... 13,117 58
T N et e i 12,559 45
7 e N s e e A SR T el e, 19,005 86
T G R ORI ) L 6:195 65
Dicse;;ber R R A O S T 4,463 32
Januar:y. b 4
..................................... 2,

;(I:'ch ........................................... ﬂ,igg gg
J: RPN s coi winieedns % bty £Ev srdd Rpd S Inaapmnsit 68 Gese . 1,063 23
. L R R R A s B e Sl A T 803 90
J:lge;r. TR T i R et e e S 1,142 76
.Tul; 7 ......................................... 11.,807 73
J RO AR e esris o sl P « - SRR bl Vol B ob il it 256
T e N B R ’913 :g
e e AR MR Rt S SieR o 815 45
LY s o . 5 e it ST o B 5 . S 1,638 72

December the 3d, 1857, the Commissioners made a ;
Jecem , n order, al-
lov;vmg A & W, A Saunders interest at the rate of one and’ane
third per cent per month, on all moneys by them previously ad-

vanced, or that they should afterwards advance, ‘

 Under this order the following sums h
Messrs. Saunders : & ave been allowed to

May A8, N8B8¢ vt Dis el e sl suet, repdi i hin $7,168 15
Sopbanpbivr BLABER. . . <oi: ik s ivanividis o o4 54N 587 T4
IEORRIIE A BB . s i i e B 9 R 893 64
Februszy 38, 1859, ... covwv.v AW seri1an 8 1,084 44
BB, ABBR« « < cimnivan wsdninn 4 S apinads BT E, 3 1,675 14
BBk TL; DB goict o v v v dBiiln o sabirts dar s | 481 26
Nownmber 3, BBEP, G (o coi dniiie « VRHEB R B s Ve 284 49
IR . .. comidy i vt APRIRBLON LT 290 88

$12,465 T4

Messrs. Saunders were also allowed exprees charges,

Boptomber'81; R8BS, ). /05, on Lk ive P avalanll $38 00
Sy TPRBOL, ol e Laa . orirads tWeesd B0t 99 00

The Commissioners did not arrange with the Messrs. Saunders
for any specified sum to be advanced, or make any arrangement
as to the time they should continue to pay the checks of the Secre-
tary. It was all left to the discretion or convenience of Messrs.
Saunders.

Mr. Presley Saunders, the Treasurer, i the brother of A. & W.
A. SBaunders, who are brothers, in Mt. Pleasant, and the entire
business has been done through the banking house of the latter.
All the money has been received and paid out by them. In re-
gard to this large amount of interest paid to Messrs. Saunders by
the Commissioners, your Committee must say that it was paid out
without authority, and in violation of law ; that the interest paid
was usurious and excessive. It was illegal to give or receive such
interest. The State, in this instance, actually paid twenty-four
per cent interest. As soon as the warrants were issued, they were
by the agents of the State presented for payment, and the usual
endorsement by the Treasurer of non-payment made upon them,
and from that day interest has been computed upon the warrants
at the rate of eight per cent per annum. These warrants were
held by the Treasurer, and Messrs. A. & W. A. Baunders made
advancements for which they were paid sixteen per cent. 'This
interest was taken from the appropriatior, so that the Asylum re-
«ceived the original appropriation with the eight per cent interest

from the State, and paid sixteen per cent for the money advanced
by Messrs. Saunders; the State actunally paying both items of
interest. The total amount of interest paid by the State on war-
rants issued, amounts to . ... ... ..., ... o Lo '810422 28



The am’t paid to Messrs. Saunders for advancements, 12,465 T4

R R T e S SR T N $22,887 03
Add to this express charges,

N S 38 00

AR ) N SRR SRRy . . ¥ A 99 00

$137 00

Messrs. Baunders expenses going east to borrow money 146 00

Makes an aggregate Sum. . ... ....cowvuriesans $23,150 00
This sum has been paid out by the State, and the Asylum has
received no direct benefit therefor, and may be set down as so
much actually lost, and by this process there has been paid out by
the State to the Treasurer of the Commissioners, $10,422 28,
which is not charged to the original appropriation. It the inter-
est paid on the appropriation upon the Auditor’s warrants whilst
they were held by the Treasurer of the Asylum, is not charged ag
interest paid by the State, and is credited as part of the original
appropriation, then the interest that the State paid should be sta-
ted at sixteen per cent, the exact amount allowed Messrs. Saun-
ders for the amount advanced by them.

Your Committee cannot but condemn the practice of allowing
interest on warrants whilst they remain in the hands of the agents
of the State. It is only an indirect way of increasing the appro-
priation, and obtaining from the Treasury a greater amount than
has been appropriated by law.

The annexed table will explain and exhibit the condition of the
accounts: F R

To total amount drawn from the Treasury, including interest
up to the time the warrants have been paid, and the outstanding
BN v s v < maa ATV + o qrirrvisss - a8if < Svs opice § % 4 $258,856 16
The amount of warrants issued by the Comirs, was.. 254,118 48
To which add the amount drawn by the Commission-

ers and less §721 received by Saunders from Mr.

Olarke. ... . Rl . old B 5,208 09

D

| o i $259,921 50
Your Committee take pleasure in bearing testimony to the gen-
eral correctness of the books, both of the Secretary of the Board of

=1
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Commissioners,and also of the Treasurer and his Agents; one er-
ror only having been discovered. Thatshowed asmall balance on
interest account, due to A. & W. A. Saunders. Your Committee
would here remark, that there is anapparent discrepaney in regard
to the amount of interest paid by the Commissioners, between their
books and their report to the Governor. The matter is explained
this way :—that the difference only between the amount of inter-
est paid for moneys borrowed,and the amount of interest received
on warrants after the contract was made was reported, which we
find to be true.

Your Committee find a small discrepancy in the amount of in-
terest on State Warrants, issued in tavor of the Asylum, as shown
by the books of the Institution, and by the books of the State
Treasurer, which discrepancy is accounted for by the officers, i_n
this way. The Treasurer, or his Agents, have been in the ha.blt
ot disposing ot Auditor’s Warrants, and the persons purchasing
them have received the interest on the same, from the time of re-
ception to the time of redemption, which your Committee after ex-
amination find to be the case. § bk,

On examining the Auditor’s books, and the State Treasurer’s
reports, your Committee find a warrant drawn in July 1856, tor
9070 30100 dollars in favor of P. Saunders, and paid the same
day. For this sum no order was found on the books ot the Cou:»
missioners, and none was tound among the papers of the Anditor’s
office. This warrant appears to have been drawn without any or-
der of the Commissioners, and for which the State has not receiv-
ed any credit on the books of the Treasurer of the Asylum. In the
absence of the #hen acting Auditor and State Treasurer, your Com-
mittee are unable to explain this discrepancy. As the matter now
appears, this amout of $2070 30-100 is not accounted for by the
Treasurer or any officer of the Asylum.

3. Your Committee procured the best mechanics a.nd‘ practi-
cal men they could find to estimate the cost of completing’ the
building, gas works, heating apparatus, &e., &e. The result is
as follows : - L1t

Mr. I. Stover, Architect, estimates for joiner work, iron work,
plastering, hot and cold air chambers, gas house, retorts, gu.wm:l
ter, fan in engine house, ice house, carriage house and -b,mn,-‘eooo
and wood room, cisterns, &C...cu.ve soneihan veeees $76,850

2
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Charles .Hurdee, fo.undryman and machinist, for steam
engine and boilers, hot water boiler, pipes, tanks,

‘conductors andpatting up..U. L.l oo aiv e 39,000 00
Davx(.i S'impson, plumber and gas fitter, for gas works,

fitting up water closets, baths, sinks, basons, fitting

and plumbing with gas fixtures................ 12,500 00
E. T. Gardner, mechanic and house furnisher, for the ‘

fornitare, carpets; &e .uli Do bomanad e o 22,900 00

Total estimated cost of finishing and furnishing the en-
tion hpibding 7 e viititvaih £ lamins o furih Lot v $150,250 00
To this sum the improvements required on theland and fencing
shrubbery, ornamenting, &e., will require several thousand dol-
lars more.

J It is but just to state that the estimates made as above are con-
sidered entirely too high by the Superintendant, Mr. Winslow
He proposes to fill these estimates for $125,000 00. " .

; We cannet too highly commend the conduct of Mr. Winglow in
?113 management and superintendence of the erection of this build-
ing. Everything appears to have progressed with the most per-
fect system. Every part of the work appears to have been done
in the most substantial manner, and in the opinion of your Com-
3n1ttee there can be produced no other instance where the public
interest has been so carefully and successfully followed and ad-

vanced, or where the public have received ; §
so full a c
tor the amount expended. onsideration

4. We have heretofore explained th issui
el A bare plaine e manner of issning the
Then'a checks were issued monthly to the laborers and others
cs’?;hmth the exception of those that were issued as prafermd’
, were generally if not always paid in the ord i
i P e order of their dates
For a considerable portion of the time
there was no mo i
the .Treunry to pay them when issued. When there was n: 2’0*:
ey in tfhe Treasury th?y become the subject of barter and, were
:mdn.d ;r goods and discounted for money ; their value was de-
mbl l.:: by the date of the check and the time that it would prob-
ably ’ paid ; the discount ranged trom five to fifteen per cent, most
commonly ten per cent. The order of payment and the fact of

)
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their being preferred checks in circulation, not being fully under-
stood by the holders of these checks, gave rise to a strong feeling
of dissatisfaction and suspicion that frands were practiced. It was
charged and honestly believed that the money in the Treasury
was improperly withheld, and used in purchasing the outstanding
checks. That favoritism was exercised in the payment of those
paid. That when money was about to be received by the Treas-
urer, such information was withheld and the checks purchased at
an unjust discount.

These charges were so confidently made and so pertinaciously
persisted in that your committee determined to investigate the
matter fully, and for this purpose invited information from all sour-
ces, and sent for many witnesses. The evidence taken is herewith
returned.

The result of this part of our investigatiors, we think fully exon-
erates the Treasurer or his Agents, Messrs. A. & W. A. Saunders,
from the least imputation or just ground for complaint.

The Asylum is constructed upon a principle that makes it an en-
tirety. The whole depends upon the completeness of all the parte.
The expense of completing the centre building and east wing will
cost comparatively but little less than the whole ; the difference
will not much exceed twenty-five thousand dollars.

Qonsidering the advanced state towards completion of the insti-
tution, the large sum of money actnally expended, the great and
increasing public necessity for such an institution, your Commit-
tee can see but one course to be pursued.

To refuse to go forward we lose the interest of all that hasbeen
cxpended, which in two years will amount to a sum that would
go tar toward completing the building, and by delay, the most un-
tortunate class of human beings, will guffer two years longer.

On the other hand, to make an adequate appropriation in the
present condition of the Treasury, and the financial embarrass-
mente of the country stands out strongly against the policy. A
small appropriation will do no good. A sum less than ninety
thousand dollars eannot be relied upon as sufficient to complete
the centre building and east wing, with the necessary out-build-
ings, gas works, &ec., necessary to opera.te the institution, and
properly accommodate patients. With this sum your Committee
believe accommodations for from one hundred and fifty to two hun-
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dred patients can be provided, and that every consideration of
duty towards this unfortunate class of people requires that such
appropriation be made by the present Legislature. With this
sum your Committee believe that the institution will be in readi-
ness by the first of January, 1861, at the latest.

Your Committee specially reter to the depositions of Messrs.
Johnston, Clarke, Winslow and Stone, as containing much in-
formation upon the subject under investigation.

The other depositions taken, and facts gathered, are also here-
with returned and submitted to your Honorable Body.

The expense incurred will be reported.

All of which is respectfully submitted.
J. C. HALL,

Chairman on part of the House. -

The undersigned, a portion of the Committee appointed to in-
vestigate the affairs ot the Insane Asylum, beg leave to make the
following supplemental report:

While your Committee would speak in complimentary terms of
the business capacity ot Mr. Winslow, they cannot refrain from
condemning a certain letter written by that gentleman, to the
Hon. James W. Grimes, dated August 14th, 1859, in reference to
the amount it would take to finish the Insane Asylum. ‘

Whilst the statements in that letter are true, yet the facts are
stated in such a manner, that different constructions may be placed
upon them, and at best, are calculated to and did deceive the peo-
ple of this State. _

It is to be regretted that Mr. Winslow, after the publicity that
was given to that letter, and the different constructions that were
put upon it, (different, no doubt from what was intended); and the
false impression it created, did not at once publish an explanatory
letter, setting forth the facts in a more concise manner, in order
that the people might know and understand the true state of the
Insane Asylum, and the amount it would actually take to finish
any part, or all of it.

... A, O, PATTERSON,
s J. C. HALL. '

4

To the General Assembly of the State of lowa :

The undersigned, members of the Joint Committee appointed

by your honorable body to investigate the affairs of the Hospital

for the Insane at Mt. Pleasant, while concurring ?u most ot the

report made to you by the Chairman of said Committee, beg leave

to submit the following statements, which are according to our

understanding of the matter, although differing somewhat from
e made in said report:

th?l?he whole amount I:)l interest paid to A. & Vf’ A. Sagnders, as

shown by the books of the Commissioners, to Febrnary 1st, 1860,

18 . - v st daimsenie Nost B i asnsie anxaRa SRRSO 25 L1 $18,607 89
Paid as follows:
From May 1, 1856, to May 1, 1858:
Paid May 22d, 1858....... 0 i e by st vl S et 18,';;’8‘ :2
« September 21, 1858 .. .cuuuevrrenrararnanee g
« November 1, 1858. . .uusmaevensraprurmates b
“ Febroary 28, 1859. ... .ceevsenn g wbte 4oy qui 4 8 1,675 -
. May 151869 vorisier costymmumnmpininnnd i dh i s
“  August 11, 1859 .. w0 v s vmmsssminisionremas s st oy
# November 1, 1859, ;. vegq <y ne s sinsinsidbip o oo gulieel
# February 1, 18680, e RS R iast TV Sty v - ,
A B O sy o o'sssaseess masé sastibass $19,011 05
Deduct on wc’;c of £10,000 borrowed east, refunded. ... 313 16
$18,697 89

oF S8 i Auditor’s
The amount of interest paid by the State on A
warrants, as shown by the books of the Auditor and

g 492 28
State Treasurer, Was. ... ...ocoersecs st " f t Lo P
This amount, deduncted from the whole amount of inter- B
est paid A. & W. A. Saunders, wonld leave........ §

i i he appropriation.
the amount of interest paid out of t ;
gM—As to the rate of interest actually paid by the B;;t?;
we do not understand it to have been 24, but 16 per cent.

-
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true that the Auditor’s Warrants atter being presented to the State
Treasurer, draw eight per cent interest until paid; but A. & W.
A. Saunders did not receive the interest paid on these warrants,
and 16 per cent out of the appropriation in addition. They only
received 16 per cent on the money advanced by them, and gave
the State credit for the interest received onjAunditor’s Warrants, as
a part of the appropriation. To illustrate the matter fully, we
will suppose that Messrs. Saunders advanced $10,000, and on the
same day received an Auditor’'s Warrant for the same amount,
drawing 8 per cent interest—both rna one year. Now if the State
actually paid 24 per cent interest, somebody must have received
$2,400 as interest, which is not the fact, for Messrs. Saunders are
the only ones receiving any interest, and they received only $1,600.
Eight per cent of which is paid out of the appropriation, and eight
per cent out of the State Treasury.

Third—We cannot concar in the opinion expressed in the re-
port, that the Asylum has received no direct benefit from the in-
terest paid by the Commissioners, and that it is an actual loss to
the Institution. For with the money the Commissioners were en-
abled to procure labor, and materials, on much more favorable
terms than they otherwise could. They were also enabled to car-
ry forward the work at a time when, if it had stopped, the dam-
age the building would have sustained in consequence of the ex-
posed condition of the walls, would have been great.

Considering the circumstances under which the Commissioners
acted, we do not feel at liberty to unqualifiedly condemn them for
borrowing money, although they may not have been authorized
by law to do so. The rate of interest paid Messrs. Saunders,
though usurious, was less than they charged their regular cus-
tomers,

DANIEL ANDERSON,
GEO. W. BEMIS,
ED. WRIGHT.

1

THE DEPOSITIONS

Uf persons summoned before the Hons. J. C. Hall, Dan Ander-
son, and A. O. Patterson, appointed to investigate the affairs of
the Hospital for the Insane, in Mount Pleasant.

A. R. H. Allen, of lawful age, being duly sworn, doth depose and
say, to wit :

Interrogatory 1. What is your age, residence, and how long
have you resided where yon now reside ?

Answer. 1 am thirty-nine years of age—reside in this city, and
have resided here over three years, last past.

4. 2. Have you ever had any business transaction with the
Insane Hospital of this State, situated in Mt. Pleasant? If so,
state what is was—how you were paid—who paid you, and what
kind of tunds you received.

A. Never had any, farther than to furnish posts to fence in the
grounds, belonging to the Hospital. Furnished said posts about
tour months since, and received a privileged check for less than
$100,00. I also furnished some lumber, to build stairs, and got a
check, which was not privileged. Was shaved ten per cent on it.
I have traded merchandize for checks, to the amount of $300 or
$400, and I do not think I ever got par for any check, except the
privileged one. A. & W. A. Saunders, always discounted my
checks. I generally took the check at a discount for any store
goods. The difference, in my estimation, between a privileged
and a general check, is, I consider, ten per cent.

A. R. H. ALLEN.

This is to certity, that the above is a correct copy of the deposi-
tion of A. R. H. Allen, as given before the Joint Committee of
Investigation, to visit the Hospital for the Insane, at Mt. Pleasant.

Attest : W. F. DAVIS,

Olerk to said Com.
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Jesse Smith being duly sworn doth depose and say, to wit :

7. 1. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
you resided where you now reside ¢ it

A. Iam 29 years of age, reside in this city,
here for six years.

7. 2. Have you ever had any business tr ¢ . e
Hospital tor the Insane, in this city, or with any of its oﬁlc_:ers? it
so, state what it was, when, how you were paid, who paid yon,
and what kind of funds you received ?

A. 1 have done blacksmithing for the Hospital to the amount
of from $100 to $300, and received Hospital checks from Mr.
Winslow, and Mr. Edwards, the Secretary. I presented th.e
checks to A. & W. A. Saunders, and got them cashed at their
face, until lately I have been compelled to stand a shave ol from
five to ten per cent. 1 was of the opinion that if I could have
kept the checks until there was money in the Hospital Treasury,
I would have received par for them.

and have resided

ansaction with the

JESSE SMITH.
This is to certity that the above is a correct copy of the deposi-
tion of Jesse Smith, who personally appeared betore the Commit-
tee of Investigation to visit the Hospital for the Insane in Mt.

Pleasant.
WM. F. DAVIS,

Clerk for said Com.

J. M. Dawson being duly sworn, made answer to the following

questions, to wit : _
What is your age, residence, and how long have you resided
where you now reside ¢ '
J e dovdy=vwo yeurs o1 age.
sided here about four years. 1
Have you ever had any business transactions with the Insane
Asylum of this city ¢

Nothing further than to have purchased some of the Asylum -

checks for provisions sold the persons who owned them, some of
which I received par for, and others were discounted at ten per
cent by A. & W. A, Saunders at their banking house,

silver or gold. T generally received said checks at par; never
recolleet to have taken them at a discount. I understood there

£ reside 1n this city and have re- -

I gener-
ally received the pay for the check in currency; never asked for

-
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was no money in the treasury, and considered it an accommoda-
tion to get them discounted. Furthermore, I was anxious to get

the trade of those persons who owned said checks, ¢
J. M. DAWSON.

A. B. Porter being duly sworn, made answer to the following
questions, to wit:

What’s your age, residence, and how long have you lived where
you now reside {

I am fifty years of age, and reside in Henry county, and have
resided there for twenty-two years.

Have you ever had any business with the Insane Hospital of
this city 1

Never, except to have purchased in the way of trade a consider-
able amount of the Asylum checks, which I took at par for goods,
and on debts due me ; some of which I kept until there was mon-
ey to redeem them out of the Treasury, and some I have sold to
A. Saunders, at a discount ot from 5 to 10 per cent, which I con-
sidered a great accommodation to me. The last amount I had
was about $600, which I offered to A. Saunders, and he (Saun-
ders) informed me if I needed some funds he would give it to me;
but he thought the checks would soon be paid and it was better to
wait until there was money in the Treasury than to stand a dis-
count of ten per cent. Saunders advanced me some money on the
checks at the usunal interest, 14 per cent per month, and the mon-
ey was paid on the checks in a short time. I think the discount
on said checks did not cost me more than 2§ per cent.

Were you acquainted with the firm ot E. F. Winslow & Sta-
ples, whilst they were doing mercantile business in this city, and
whether they were in the habit of dealing in the Asylun checks,
and whether they dealt differently from any other firm in this
city ¢

I was acquainted with the firm of W. & 8., whilst they did
business in this city ; they were in the habit of dealing in Asylum
checks as other merchants did in this city, to wit : at par for goods
and on debts.

Do you know whether the firm of Staples & Winslow had any

arrangement with the Treasurer of the Asylum or Banking House
3 job d '
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of A. & W. A. Sannders, by which these checks had pretference
others ?

rW;n‘do not know that they had. T feel very sure that they had not,
indeed T am certain they had not. '

: State whether youhad an opportunity of knowing Whethe‘r there
was any arrangement between Henry Winslow, _the Supenntez.ld-
ant of the Asylum and the firm of Staples & Wlnslo'w, by which
the latter were in any manner favored by the former in their com-
merce in these Asylum checks, and if so, state the facts.‘

A. I had a good opportunity of knowing. E. F. .Wmslow h.as
been in my employ for eighteen months. 1 feel certain—I certain-
ly know there was no arrangement why they had preference over

ny one else. )

; a What kind of funds have you received for Asylum <.:hecks

when presented to the Treasurer ; if specie has been required at

any time, and has been refused by the Treasurer; if so, state the
ons given by the Treasurer? :

l‘eﬂz Ighave a{lways received specie, or its equivalent, from the
‘ i ts, A. & W. A. Saunders.

Treasurer, or his agents, PRI

R. 8. Scott, being duly sworn, made answers to the following

|uestions, to-wit : _
A Q. Iat.’ What is your age, where do you live, and how long
have yon resided there ? pened

A. {at. I am nearly fitty-three years old; Ireside in Mt. Pleas-
ant, Henry county—I have resided here five years. .

té. 2d. ySi:a).l:e your connection, directly or indirectly, with the
Asylum, or officers connected with it, if you have had any.

A. 1 kept boarders that worked at the Asylum; for boarding
they paid me in Asylum checks. I had to have the orders cashed
to keep my house up. I presented the orders at the banking house

of A. & W. A. Saunders, where they were discounted ten per
centum. I was informed at the time, that there was no n.10ney in
the Treasury with which to pay the checks. I think this was in

f 1858. :
the summer of ROBERT S. SCOTT.

W EDNESDAY MORNING—EXAMINATION.

Peter Melcher, of lawful age, being duly sworn as the law
directs, doth depose and say:
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Q. 1. What is your age, residence, how long have you resided
where you now reside?

A. 1. Am thirty years of age. Reside in Mt. Pleasant. Lived
here near six years.

Q. 2. Have you had any business transaction, directly or in-
directly, with the Insane Asylum in this place, or its officers ? it
80, state what that has been?

A. 2. Am a stone cutter. CQut and delivered stone, under con-
tract, to the amount of about $12,000 or $14,000. Commenced
work in 1857. Continued work at different times, into the sum-
mer of 1859. Every month I received a check and received money
upon the same at Saunders’ bank. First year I got check of Wins-
low; after that I got certificate of work, and received checks of
Secretary. Got checks paid in paper money. Got face of checks,
which I used as par currency. Never had any checks discounted.
Had to wait from June to New Year, in 1858, for money npon my
checks. When I was told there was no gold in the Treasury, I
did not ask for it. Was never refused when there was gold. Went
to Saunders, and was told there was no money, and therefore held
on to my checks. Got no interest on old delayed checks.

Q. 3. Do you know of any person who was refused money
upon checks, when there was money in the Treasury, and others
were being paid? it o, whom ?

A. Do not know of any.

PETER MELCHER.

Eungene Winslow being upon oath, doth depose and ﬁay:
Z. 1. What is your age, residence, and how long have you-
resided where yon now reside y

A. 1. Am 26 years of age, have resided here sinze the fall of
1856. .

7. 2. Have you ever had any basiness transactions with the
Insane Asylum or its officers, in this city ¢ If so state what those
transactions have been, and how yon were paid, and who paid you,
and what kind ot funds you received ? . .

A. Have been employed upon the Asylum since the laying of
the foundation. Paid the first year, in winter of 1856, and spring
of 1857, in coin. Since then have been paid in checks. Checks
were drawn at the end of every month, and paid at Mr. Saunders’
Bank. Always paid when presented—but most of them were dis-
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counted. Were not discounted when there was money in the
Treasury. Checks were generally diec_ouflted 10 per cent—n;rver
any higher than that. Checks were paid in paper currency. Nev-
nded gold. .
erge;auDeid gyou ever know of checks being paid in Keokuk or
Wapello Serip, or Burlington Insurance money ¢ \

A. No recollection—could not tell what kind of paper was paid
out. Took whatever was current. ;

I 4. Do you know of any other persons presenting warrants
which were not paid, when there was money in the Treasury, be-
ing paid out ?

A. 1do not. :

Z 5. Did yon have any preference over others, in payment of
warrants to you, for services rendered the Asylum ?

A. Not that I know of.

1. 6. Do you know of any workmen or contracitors th.ere,‘ to
whom any preference was made, in payments for their servwﬂes?

A. 1 do not, except upon contracts with Railroads for freights.

Am a son of Mr. Winslow, Superintendent of the Institution.
EUGENE WINSLOW.

Zachariah Willbourne, being upon oath, doth depose and say :

Z. 1. What is your age, residence, and how long have you re-
sided where you now reside ?

A. Am 52 in May—reside in Henry county. Have resided in
this county 29 years.

1. 2. Have you had any business transactions directly or indi-
rectly with the Insane Asylum in this place, or with any of its of-
ficers ? If so, state what those transactions were—how you were
paid, who paid you and what kind of funds you received ?

A. Have done a great deal of hauling and delivered consider-
able material, probably to the amount of $7000 or $8000. Be-
tween the periods of 1856 and 1859, never received any money
or checks from the officers ot the Asylum. Received some second
handed. The checks I received I presented to Mr. Saunders, who
said there was no money in the Treasury, but that he would ad-
vance his own funds at a discount of ten per cent. That he had
advanced about$30,000 and would advance on my checks at 10 per

|
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cent discount. Told Mr. Saunders that wouldn’t suit my purpose.
Turned the checks over to the Sheriff in satisfaction of a judgment
existing against me, at par value. Can't say I ever knew Mr.
Saunders to refuse to pay checks when there was money in the
Treasury. The checks which I held did not amount to more than
$50 in the aggregate.

Z. WILLBOUR.

Dominique Dambrun being npon oath, doth depose and say :

Z. 1. Whatis your age, residence, and how long have you re-
sided where you now reside ?

A. Am 31 years of age; came here in 1856, Reside in this
county, about 3 miles from this city.

1. 2. Have you ever had any business transaction with the
Insane Asylum in this place, or with any of its officers? if so,
state what it was, how you were paid, who paid you, and what
kind of funds you received ?

A. 1In 1856, in May, I contracted to furnish dressed stone—
(three of us in partnership)—for 60 cents per foot, and paid on
monthly estimates. First pay day came ; went to see Mr. Wins-
low. Mr. W. kept something back. He told us that when the
Asylum was finished, he wanted something to be coming to us.
Every pay day in 1856, he kept something back ; sometimes $30,
sometimes $50, or something like that. There is still due me
$264, which has never been adjusted, and to which I claim I am
justly entitled, and for the collection ot which [ am advised. I
have no remedy except by the action of the Legislature. For
these items suit was brought in the District Court of Henry coun-
ty, by an arrangement with the Commissioners against said Com-
missioners, in which they acknowledged service on the 29th day
ot September, 1858, but no trial was had. The attorney for the
defendants, answering to the jurisdiction ot the Court, that no
suit could be brought against the Commissioners, for the amount
due, a copy of which notice, endorsed with the acknowledgment
of service, is herewith attached and made part of my deposition.
In 1858, I worked five or six months cutting stone for the Asylum,
amounting to from 8300 to $400. I worked for August Richard,
who shaved me 10 per cent, becanse, as he said, he had to submit
to a shave of 10 per cent at the Bank, on the checks. Mr. Rich-
ard had trom 10 to 12 hands, and as I understood, they all had to
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submit to the same shave. Richard told me and the other hands,
that there were no moneys in the Treasury.
Dissolved partnership above referred to, in January, 1857.
DOMINIQUE DAMBRUN.

The following sheet is an Exhibit of notices and acceptance of
gervice in suit between deponent and Asylum Commissioners.
W. F. DAVIS.

Dominigne Dambrun
8. In District Court,
Ralph P. Lowe, Charles 8. Clarke and L Henry County, Iewa.
Edward Johnson, as Commissioners of
Towa Insane Hospital. J (Original notice.)

7o said Commissioners :—Take notice, that a petition will be
on file on the 15th day of October next, in the office of the clerk
of the District Court of said county, claiming of you the sum of
three hundred dollars, and for cause of such claim, says that the
same is founded upon a contract for the delivery of stone to said
Hospital, and for the delivery of stone by plaintiff for said Hospi-
tal in the months of April, May, and June, 1857, amounting to
$1,177 65, upon which there has been paid, as plaintiff alleges,
the sum of $913 65. Plaintiff claims a balance of $264 and in-
terest thereon at the rate of six per cent per annum, from April,
1857 ; and unless you appear and answer to said petition by the
2d day of next term of said Court, judgment will be rendered
against you thereon.

AMBLER & WOOLSON,
Attorneys for Dambrun.

We acknowledge service of the above notice, and agree not to
object that the suit is brought in Henry County, but demand a
copy of notice, petition and bill of particulars of items as may be
set forth in petition, September 21, 1858, !

(Signed) RALPH P. LOWE,
CHARLES 8. CLARKE.
Hand papers to M. L. Edwards.

John Tirney

. 8. ‘

Ralph P. Lowe, Charles 8. Clarke and

Edwnrd Johnson, as Commissioners of
e Iowa Insane Hospital.

7o said Commissioners :—Take notice, that a petition will be on

In District Court,
Henry County, Towa.

- A, Y
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file on the first day of October, 1858, in the office of the clerk of
the District Court of said county, claiming of you the sum of one
thousand dollars, as money due him for stone, and upon a contract
for the delivery ot stone for said Hospital, and as a balance due
him for stone delivered for said Hospital, from the month of June,
1856, to the month of September, 1857, and demanding interest
from the first day of July, A. D. 1858; and unless you appear
and answer to said petition, on or before the second day of the
next term of said Court, judgment will be rendered against you
thereon.
AMBLER & WOOLSON,
Attorneys for Plaintiff,

We acknowledge service of the above, and waive the place in
which suit is brought, but demand copy of notice, petition and
bill ot items accompanying petition, September 21, 1858.

(Signed) R. P. LOWE,

CHARLES S. OLARKE,
Hand papers to M. L. Edwards.

Abraham Fletcher, being upon oath, doth depose and say :

/. 1. What is your age, place of residence,and how long have
you resided where yon now reside ¢

4. Am about 28 years of age—have been in Mt. Pleasant for
abount 3 years.

Z. 2. Have you ever had any business transactions with the
Insane Asylum in this place, or any of its officers? If so, state
when it was, what it was, how you were paid, who paid you, and
what kind of tunds you received ?

A. T contracted for cutting and delivering stone for the Asy-
lum, in February, 1857, to the amount of, perhaps $2,000 or $3,-
000. Previous to September 2d, 1857, we were paid every month
in par currency. Up to September 2d, 1857, I received checks
from Mr. Winslow, which I presented to Mr. Saunders, who paid
the same, dollar for dollar. I received an October check, pa;_a}ble
30 days after date, which was not paid when presented. The rea-
sons given me for non-payment were, that there was no money in
the Treasury. Presented checks a great many times after that,
and was told there was no money. I purchased goods of Pres %y
Saunders, and paid for the same with a part of my October check.
The balance of my check was discounted at 10 per cent. I held




24

some three checks, or more, subsequently. The June check I
waited for until there was money in the Treasury. From Sep-
tember, 1857, to June, 1858, T got no money upon checks, unless
they were discounted. The money I received in part, previousto
September, 1857, was Lagrange, Georgia money, and some Bur-
lington money, but received none that was not current, at par. T
cannot say that my checks were ever discounted when there was
money in the Treasury.
ABRAHAM FLETCHER.

J. L. Penn, being upon oath, doth depose and say :

Z. 1. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
you resided in the place where you now reside ?

A. Am near forty years of age—have resided in Mt. Pleasant
over three years.

Z. 2. Have you ever had any business transactions with the
Insane Asylum, in this place, or with any of its officers? It 80,
state what the same was, when it was, who paid you, and what
kind ot funds you received ?

A. Had no particular transactions, except to trade for Asylum
checks. Ikeep a cash store—have invariably taken Asylum checks
at par; at the same time have taken our own county orders at ten
per cent discount. Most of the checks we held were cashed—some-
times we held them until we were notified that there was money
in the Treasury, and received bankable funds for them. At one
time I presented checks to the amount of perhaps $300, for which
I received par currency. At another time I sold Mr. Saunders
about $100 in checks, at a discount of five per cent.

Z. 2. Had you good means, or was you knowing, how the mon-
ctary affairs of the Asylum were transacted ?

A. I always understood that when there was money in the
Treasury, the checks were paid—Dbut when none, the checks were
bought up at a discount of from five to ten per cent, by different
parties about town. Other parties besides A. & W. A. Saunders,
discounted these checks, and held them until there was money in
the Tréasury, when they presented them and received the face of
checks. .

4. 3. Have you any reason to believe that any Asylum checks
were discounted at the banking house of A. & W. A. Saunders, or
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any other parties, when there was money in the Treasury with
which to pay them ?

A. T have no reason to believe there were any, either from my
own knowledge, or from business men generally.

J. L. PENN.

A. Beers, being recalled, states as follows:

4. 1. When yon presented the order spoken of in your deposi-
tion on yesterday, to the Treasurer, what reply was made by the
Treasurer !

A. When I presented the check referred to in my deposition,
at the banking house of A. & W. A. Saunders, I was told, £ think
by A. Saunders, that he could not pay the check, as there was an
arrangement with the Treasurer, P. Saunders, for said Gaulden’s
checks. I then called npon said P. SBaunders, who told me that he
(Gaulden) had agreed to let him have his checks, or a part of them,
in payment of his (Gaulden’s) debt to said P. Saunflers; but by
agreeing to see some certain amount then stated, paid from Gaul-
den to P. Saunders, I received the face of said check in par cur-
runcy, and in a short time afterwards was released from said

liability by said Saunders.
et E. BEERS.

John Eshelman, of lawful age, being sworn as the law directs,
deposes and says as follows, to-wit: offo ,

1. 1. What is your age, where do you live, and how long have
you lived where you now reside ?

A. 1. T am thirty-eight years old—reside in Mount Pleasant—
have lived here fourteen years. '

/. 2. Have you ever had any business, directly or indirectly,
with the Asylum at this place, or its officers? if so, state what ?

A. 2. T have dealt some in said Asylum checks; have tradqd
for some ot them in my merecantile business, probably two or three
hundred dollars, mostly, and probably all, at their face. I t_rided
for those checks, understanding that I would have to wait until
there was money in the Treasury to pay them. I donotnow
recollect of discounting but one, of about one hundred dollars;
that was to A. & W. A. Saunders, at a discount of ten cents. I
have no reason to believe that Asylum orders were discounted at

4
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A. & W. A. Saunders’ banking house, when there was money in
the Treasury with which to pay them.
JOHN ESHELMAN.

William R. Hill, of lawful age and capacity, being sworn as the
law directs, doth depose and say as follows, to-wit :

/. 1. What is your age, where do you live, and how long have
you lived where you now reside ?

4. 1. T am twenty-eight—I reside in Mt. Pleasant—have resi-
ded here from time immemorial. Ay’

1. 2. Have you had any business, directly or indirectly, with
the Lunatic Asylum at this place, or its officers ?

4. 2. I have sold them goods for said Hospital, not to any
considerable amount—was paid by checks on Treasury of said Hos-
pital, which checks were paid by Treasurer in par currency, when
presented. I have had checks of other parties; where I have paid
cash or its equivalent, I have bought them at ten and less discount.
I have always received the face of all checks presented, when notice
:1?8 kgi‘rren that there was money in the Treasury to pay oft said

ecks.

WM. R. HILL.

——

John Smith, of lawful age, being duly sworn as the law directs
states as follows, to wit : '

Az 1 What is your age, where do youlive, and how long have
you lived where you now reside # :
A. 1. Tam about28; I live near Mt. Pleasant, have lived here
four years.

Z. 2. Have you had any business direct] indi i
) y or indirectly with

the Asylum or its officers, if 80, state what, : il
' e htv\.a worked for the Asylum in cutting stone for some
time. I received the pay for my work monthly+probably up to
;857. A_ﬂ;er that I received what is called Asylum checks, which
traded in part for goods; let P. Saunders have some ot them for
%oods and money at par; some of them I sold at the Banking
ouse of A. & W. A. Saunders, at five per cent discount. The
checks were drawn in James Kelley’s name, gl
JOHN SMITH.

o

-

e

James B. Shaw, of lawful age being duly sworn, testified as fol-
lows, to wit:

Z. 1. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
you resided where you now reside ?

A. Am 52 years of age, reside in Mt. Pleasant,—have resided
here about seven years.

1. 2. Have you ever had any business transactions with the
Insane Asylum ot this place, or with any of its officers ¢ It so,
state when, where, who paid you, and what funds you received.

A. Have had some transactions with Mr. Winslow, Superin-
tendent of the Asylum—have been in mercantile trade for about six
vears, and have sold goods to Mr. Winslow, for the Asylum. My
business is selling hardware principally. I received my pay uni-
formly in Asylum checks from the Secretary. Checks were cashed
at the Banking House ot Alvin & W. A. Saunders, up to the
tall of 1857 my checks were never discounted. Since then I
have had some discounted 10 per cent by Messrs. Baunders’. Was
in company winth William Saunders, brother to Alvin Saunders,
something over 18 months—commencing probably in December
1857. Was then in the dry goods trade. We took a good many
of the Asylum checks, furnishing such goods and groceries as we
had. I believe we uniformly took such checks for their face. When
we disposed of these checks at the Bank, we submitted to a dis-
conut of 10 per cent, when others were deing the same.

1. 3. Had you any reason to believe that those checks were
discounted by A. & W. A. Saunders, (or other parties) at any time
when there was money in the Treasury ot said Asylum, belong-
ing to the State? : ;

A. Ihad not. I have every reason to believe there was not.

/. 4. Do you know what has been the usual rate of interest at
A.& W. A. Saunders’ Banking House, and other Banking Houses
in this place for four years past’? If o, state what it has been.

A. My impression is that it has been usually one and one and.
a half per cent per month. (s &

Z. 5. Can you state whether there has been more money in th:
Banking Houses of these places for the last three or four years
than could be let at one and one and a half per cent per month ? -

A. I think there has 1ot been as much. Az
1. 6. Do you know of any preference being giver to any par-
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ties holding those checks of the same class,
A. Ido not. I have no reason to believe

the intimacy existing between Messrs. Sa

have every reason to believe that I would have i

. received as

ta.vor as any other holders of such checks, The last checks Ilnhu:z

discounted by Mr. Saunders, (dated October 1859,) were discount-

& .
e t:,e;i_ reluctantly, and only beeause he had previously promised

All ot which is acecordin
ollection.

in payment of them ?
there has been. From
unders and myself, I

g to the best of my knowledge and ree-

JAMES B. SHAW.

E. 8. Hill, of lawtul
to wit :

4. 1. What is your age, where do ou i
have you resided in your present place ofj" resi:l?xigee’?and o 10#8

A. Have resided here 25 years.

4. 2. Have you ever had an
Insane Asylum of  this place,
what it was, who paid yon,
ceive ¢

.A. Whet.1 the Asylum was commenced, I was in business i
;:2: }:lla:;e, (tm ‘11§58.) I l(1:0111menced taking Asylum checks at thexil;

» uncerstanding at the end of every month, we. wer tod
the gold for the same. The first orders I resent d I ‘the gald,
all in §1 pieces; and after that, perh spon,sen o
lzmount of checks presented fronI; T;pasury‘.:e’ Sziie;vtelfeng;lgafw
had 1o personal connexion with either of the Messrs. Saunders v;
: :vel:)een out of business since 1856. My understanding si;zce

en has been that my boys have taken Asylum checks at a dis-

count of 10 per cent—some more—some less. They have neverto

my knowledge obtained any gold from the Treasury, but have

::;: ;:z:nf:ll;:rz% B‘t:::eAcurlreu(:yl.l I have frequently advised the
: sylum checks. Bat when in their pos:
sion they have always been able to h el syt
old them without ¢ i

::1 ; ::;.vzs 3'.‘:;:37 have mon:y enough to carry on thseug;:ign
as some other folks. When th f
checks they took currency. KBy

. k y.. The boys to whom I ref.

ix):z sons, hm l')usmess in this city, one of whom is i:;aci,;:vew
rsons holding Asylum checks have been in the store and oﬂ’er:

age being duly sworn, testified as follows,

¥ business transaction with the
or any of its officers? If 80, state
and what kind of tunds did you re-

T
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ed them to my sons at a discount of 10 and 15 per cent. Some-
times they would remark that they could do better with Mr. Saun-
ders. . Sometimes would come back from him, and sometimes not.
Names of such persons I do not recollect. We got some checks of
May, June, July, and so on unpaid. 1 asked my son if there were
any checks that had never been presented for payment. These
checks mever had—but that he had been informed by Mr. Stone,
in the Banking House of the Messrs. Saunders, that no checks
had been paid since April 1859. I also understood trom the Mt.
Pleasant Branch of the State Bank, that they were not paying any
since April 1859. On Sunday last, week ago, I understood that
Presley Saunders had been sent for, and that Mr. Thompson was
going to Des Moines. I never had been at Des Moines, and thought
it would be a good time to go there. Went to my son and told
him I would like to know about these checks ot May, June, July,
and others ; belore I went up Monday morning I met Mr. Saun-
ders’ clerk (Mr. Page,) at the store door ; asked him how far they
had paid Asylum checks. He replied, that they had paid April
checks up to May.

Went to see if Mr. Thompson was going, who was not positive,
but thought he would go. He did go. Then went to Presley
Saunders, in his store, and told him what I had heard, that he
was going to Des Moines. He replied that he was not certain of
going—that his brother had written to him to be ready in case he
was sent for ; at same time he told me he thought ot starting for
New York that afternoon. I then said that I was going to Des
Moines, and wished to know what amount of checks had been is-
sued unpaid. He said that he did not know—his brother Alvin
attended to that business—did not know anything more about it
than I did, or something to that effect. The reason why I did
this was because there had been a great deal of talk about shaving
of checks, &e., by people in general. Called on Mr. Jones, Treas-
urer of State, in Des Moines, told him what my business was.
Mr. Jones took me into the Auditor’s office, and was introduced
to Mr. Cattell’s clerk. The following are the items I tound in
that office, to wit: -

1859. «
January 28. P. Saunders, for warrant, audited . ....... $2,437 00
April 9. do do o' 19004488 3,250 00
June 20. do do do 1 1igilg c.. 8,253 9T

e S — S T
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July 14. P. Baunders, for warrant, audited. ... ... 1,256 00
October 7. do do o 5. bluaw. ¢ 1,050 00
October 8. do do oo 2001090 1,734 00
Oectober 5 and 10, do Hderooyy; iy, 7,927 70
December 23, do do dobaa i wglnk & 1:533 i

Went into Treasurer’s Office to ascertain how manv of these
warrants had been paid. Mr. Jones said that it would take him
some time to look over his books, and I think that he said thai
“here is one that is marked paid,” looking upon his book as he
spoke.

£. 3. Can you name any one person who offered to sell checks
to your sons, as referred to above ?

A.. Cannot think of any now, buat ean furnish them.

1. 4. With whom did you have an understanding that you
were to receive gold, monthly, for your checks? “

A. It was understood generally that they were to be paidl-i‘h
gold.  For proot of this, I give the facty that Mr. Saunders paid
those checks in gold, which he would not do, unless he were coni-
pelled. I had no private understanding with Mr. Saunders that
my checks were to be paid in gold. ' V

E. 8. HILL.

Edward Johnstone, of lawful bei :
follows, to wit: age, being duly sworn, testified as

4. What is your age, place of reside |
. : ; 5 ‘
you resided where you ’now reside ¢ P00 ous e
4. Am 44 years of age—reside i i
A Joom.« ge—reside in Fort Madison—have re-
4. 2. Have you ever had an i I
ive you e ; ¥ business transactions with th
It!::ane Asylum in this place, or with any of its officers ? : J[f:'taoe
state what they were, when, how you were paid, and what kmd,
of funds you received? - ’
4 ‘;.};e Afpomted a Commissioner for the erection of the Asylu.ii:
b);e . tt::p:: ?55. '}(I'Ihe only moneys I have ever received, have,
_ . dlem and expenses, as shown by the books,. I
tinued acting as Commissioner until January 14th, 1859; wh:;nl

resigned, in a letter ich i
S— 2 e B,’? Gov. Lowe, which is hereto attached, and

A 4
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“EXHIBIT B.”

(Copy-)

Hox. R. P. Lowg, Dear Sir:—Absence from home, and other
causes, have prevented me from attending any meeting of the
Commissioners of the Hospital for the Insane, since, I believe, the
7th of August, 1857.

With the exception of signing one or two orders on the State
Treasurer, 1 have not been able, since that time, to participate in
any of the proceedings ot the Commissioners.

My engagements for the present year will afford me but tew
opportunities of co-operating with them.

In view of this State of things, and in justice to the State and
myself, I feel constrained to resign my position as Commissioner.

Trusting that my suceessor may co-operate more efliciently with
the Commissioners, than I have been able to do for more than a
year past,

' I remain, very respectfully yours,
EDWARD JOHNSTONE.

Ft. Madison, Towa, Jan. 14, 1859.

1. 8. Did yon, at any time, as such Commissioner, request any
party, or parties, to advance means, if necessary, to carry on said
Insane Hospital ? = If so, state who, and the circumstancs connected
therewith. :

A. Cannot recollect the date, but at one time, indeed several
times, having been informed by the Treasurer of the Hospital that
there were no funds of the State in the Treasury, and that money
was necessary to carry on the construction of the building, 1 did,
in conjunction with the other Commissioners, Gov. Grimes and
Doctor Clark, request Alvin Saunders, of this place, to furnish
trom time to time, as he was able, means to carry on the work upon
said Hospital. I think no special sum was agreed upon; there
may have been—but if so, T don’t recollect what it was; but it was
understood that he was to receive a fair compensation for so doing.
T was not present at the time a fixed sum was agreed upon, as ap-
pears by the minutes of the Commissioners. The Commissioners
were induced to take this course, from the fact that they peﬁmd
the interests of the State would suffer greatly by the stoppage of

the work. At that time a number of hands were employed, large
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quantities of materials were on hand, &c., &c. I have always un-
derstood, and believe, that Mr. Saunders did furnish the pecuniary
aid, when necessary to carry on the work, and that during the late
financial crisis. (In this connection, it is but justice to Mr. Saun-
ders to say, that without his aid the work must have stopped. The
Commissioners could not learn from what other source this pecn-
niary aid could have been derived. Mr. Saunders very reluctant-
ly, and only after repeated solicitations, consented to furnish such
means.)

. 4. Was there ever any formal and complete estimate ot the
expense for the erection of the Insane Hospital ?

A. 1 have no recollection of any special estimate. We based
our ideas of the cost of the building, tfrom the statements ot Doctor
Bell, Kirkridge, and other parties in the Eastern States. The gen-
eral conversation with persons east, indicated that a suitable build-
ing would cost $200,000 or $300,000. The Commissioners confi-
ded fully in Mr. Winslow. He came to us with the highest rec-
ommendations with which any man ever came to the Western
country. We knew little or nothing about such a building, and
therefore confided all to Mr. Winslow, so far as the construction of
the building was concerned. This confidence in Mr. Winslow, on
my part, was increased, in the examination by me of vouchers
showing the expenditures of money on the Asylum, (while he was
Superintendent,) amounting to many thousands of dollars, all of
which I found in every instance, strictly correct. The Hospital
was located at Mt. Pleasant by the Legislature. 1 have no doubt
that other places might have been found in the State, where the
building might have been constructed for less money. For exam-
ple, we were compelled to purchase an engine, planing-machine
for making of sash, planing, &c., &c.; also to erect brick-machines,
for the purpose of making brick for the Hospital, which might
have been avoided in other localities. Anocther item, making an
oxtra expense, was the hauling of sand, which amounts to a large
sum, from a long distance, as he has been intormed. In addition
to all this, the difficulty and cost ot getting money during the late
tinancial crisis, added to the expense. The unfavorable weather
has increased the expense. The Hospital might have been erected
somewhat more cheaply, if we had used materials such as are fre-
quently used in this country, of an inferior character. But it was
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the determination of the Commissioners, that no material of an
inferior quality, either of wood, stone, &c., should be placed in the
building; and that it shounld be a first-rate building. Mr. Wins-
low, the Superintendent, can answer this interrogatory more fully
than I can.

1. 5. Please explain the following passage on page 5, in the
report of the Commissioners of 1858-9. Was that report based
upon the estimate of Superintendent Winslow ?

A. I have no recollection of any formal or special estimate be-
ing made by Mr. Winslow. The amount stated in the report I pre-
sume was obtained from conversation with Mr. Winslow, and from
the impressions of the Cemmissioners themselves. / was of the
opinion at the the time of the making of this report, that this sum
would complete the building.

1. 6. Was that opinion concurred in by the Superintendent,
Mr. Winslow.

A. 1 repeat that Mr. Winslow made no formal or special esti-
mate. He may have expressed that opinion, and as we had all
confidence in him the Commissioners probably relied on that opin-
ion. The report was probably based upon information derived
from Mr. Winslow, and the impression of the Commissioners. But

abont all this I have no distinet recollection.
EDWARD JOHNSTONE.

1 wish to make this additional statement. The Commissioners
hoped to keep the total of the expenses of the construction of the
Hospital in or about the sum of $200,000; but like the cost of all
other buildings, either public or private, they grew on their hands.
The difficalty of procuring materials of the best character, the
change trom brick to stone, in erecting the building—the change
in the original intention about the heating apparatus—the bad
seasons, and trouble of obtaining money, &c., &ec.; all contribu-
ted largely to increase the expenses. I think no formal estimate
of the total cost was made. The Architect in Boston could not
make one with any degree of accuracy, as he was wholly unac-
quainted with price of material, labor, &c. The plans were be-
fore the Superintendent and Commissioners, and estimates were
made from time to time, of such material, &c., as were required
in the progr5esa of the work. The original eontemplated cost, as
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before stated, was kept in view by the Commissioners, and it was

upon that basis their report had been made. . ;
For the last two years, I have had but little connection with

the business of the Hospital, and am not as well posted on the

subject as I might otherwise have been.
EDWARD JOHNSTONE.

Ralph P. Lowe, of lawful age, being duly sworn, testified as
follows, to wit:

1. 1. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
you resided where you now reside !

A. Am of lawful age, reside in Keokuk.

1. 2. At what time did you enter upon the discharge of your
duties as Commissioner of the Lunatic Hospital in Mt. Pleasant ¢

A. By virtue of my office, as Governor, I was made ex-officio
member of the Board of Commissioners, and entered upon the
discharge of my duties as such, early in the spring of 1858,

1. 3. Please state upon what principle the Board allowed A.
& W. A. Saunders interest on advancements made by them, com-
mencing May 23d, 1858, and continuing during the time you
served as member of said Board?

A. That allowance was made by virtue of a previous arrange-
ment, or contract, entered into with Messrs. Saunders, by my
predecessors, which was the amount due them for interest on pre-
vious advancements, up to that time. The subsequent allowances
made were for balances due on advances made by the Messrs.
Saunders, up to the time the interest was allowed.

Z. 4. Upon what principle were orders directed to be drawn
upon the Auditor of State, for the moneys appropriated for the
Hospital of the Insane, during the years 1858 and 1859 ?

A. Upon actual estimates of work done, as reported by the
Superintendent to the Commissioners, who carefully examined
each item of the same, before they issued their order upon the
Auditor of State for warrant. No order was issued, or authorized,
until a personal inspection of the estimates presented to the Board
of Commissioners, by the Superintendent, wus made. The Com-
missioners strictly pursued the requirements of the law in exam-
ining the estimates and issuing their orders.

1. 5. State whether any examination was made with Presley

35

Saunders, the Treasurer of said Board, in regard to the amount of
moneys he had received and paid out during the year 1859 ¢
and whether there was ever any money found to be in his hands
which had not been paid out upon the order of the Board !

A. I made no such personal investigation or inquiry, myself
but learned the condition of the Treasury through our Secretary,
who lived there and professed to know the cendition of th(;
Treasury.

1. 6. By the minutes of the Board, of January 20th, 1859
-there appears to be allowed A. Saunders, $146 for expenses in go:
ing east after money. Can you explain what money he went
after, and what the said expenses were for 1

A. We had a large amount of State warrants on which we
could not get the money from the State Treasury to prosecute the
work. These warrants were drawing eight per cent interest. It
occurred to the Board that as money was said to be plenty in the
east, that these warrants could be cashed for a very small advance
over the interest they were drawing, In order to obviate the in-
terest we were paying for advances at home, the Board employed
Col. A. Saunders to go east with about $40,000 of warrants, ‘and
to get the money, if possible, on the same, which he agreed to do
apd charge us no more than his expenses. The amount allowed
him was his expenses. He only succeeded in negotiating $10,-
000, by going personally the security of the State.  Our objec;t
was to reduce the interest we were paying for money at home :
bat in this we succeeded only to a limited ‘extent, but more than’
enough to cover the expense of that trip. ;

£. 7. Do you know anything more. about the subject matter
under investigation, that will be of any service, or throw light
upon it? :

A. During the two years of my connection with the institu-
tion, if one single dollar has beer. misapplied or wrongtully squan-
dered, I have no knowledge of the fact ; but on the other hand,
my solemn conviction is, that all things in connection with the
erection of that institution, have been done in the most perfect
good faith. ; ' ’ i
R. P. LOWE.

ioizibees o/

Charles 8. Clarke, ot lawful age, being duly sworn, testified as

tollows, to wit :
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7. 1. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
yon resided where you now reside ?

A. Am of lawfal age, reside in Fairfield, have resided there
about three years.

[ 2. At what time did you enter upon the discharge of your
duties as Commissioner of the Hospital for the Insane in Mount
Pleasant ?

A. 1 was appointed one of a Board of Commissioners to Super-
intend the erection of a building as an Asylum for the Insane, by
the act of 1854—5, and entered upon the discharge of duties at the
first meeting of the Board March 15th, 1855, and have continued
a member of the Board until the presenttime. I was first Treas-
arer of the Board. I resigned in the fall of 1855, alter which Pres-
ley Saunders was appointed Treasurer.

7. 8. How mueh have you received for your services !

A. I have received in all less than $350.

L. 4. Did you at any time as such Commissioner, request any
party or parties to advance means it necessary, to carry on said
Hospital

A. The Commissioners employed a Superintendent, who en-
gaged workmen and bought material for the building in good faith,
expecting the money would be received from the State Treasury
to pay such laborers, and for such material, promptly. But tail-
ing to receive money from time to time, they were compelled to
borrow to satisfy the urgent demands of creditors. We thought
this arrangement would be only temporary, still hoping that there
would soon be funds in the State Treasury to pay all our drafts,
that we might meet our indebtedness. This condition of things,
however, continued until the progress of the work was such, that we
deemed it necessary to borrow still more, in order to preserve
what had already been done. If we had not done so, the loss to
the State by exposure of the work to the elements, would have
been far greater than the cost of the interest. I may add here, also,
that the difference in the purchase of materials for cash from time
to time has more than paid the interest on such loans. This being
the condition of the funds in the State Treasury, which has exist-
ed from nearly the commencment ot the work to the present, and
the condition of the work, the Commissioners did make contracts
with A. & W. A. Saunders, to advance money to pay for materials
and labor. When these arrangements to borrow money were
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made, trom time to time, the Messrs. Saunders were assured they
should receive reasonable compensation for the use of it. For the
rate per cent allowed them by the Commissioners, I refer youn to
the books kept by the Secretary, as I cannot positively state trom
memory.

1. 5. Upon what principle were orders directed to be drawn
upon the Auditor ot State, for the monies appropriated for the
Hospital for the Insane, during the years 1858-59 ¥

A. After the liabilities for each month were incurred, an ex-
hibit of the same was made out and certified to by the Superin-
tendent and Secretary ; an order was then drawn and signed by
the Commissioners. This with the exhibit, was sent to the Aud-
itor of State,

1. 6. State whether any examination was made with Presley
Saunders, the Treasurer of said Board, in regard to the amount ot
moneys he had received and paid out during the year 1859 ¢ And
whether there was any money found to be in his hands, which had
not been paid out on the order ot the Board ?

A. The Treasurer has rendered the account of his receipts and
disbursements from time to time, to the Board. And I havelearned
the condition of his account from personal examination, and from
the Secretary, who gave them a careful examination ; compared
them with the accounts kept by him, as Secretary of the Board. I
am confident that there has not been any money in his hands un-
paid on the order of theBoard. ‘The fact is, that at no time, to
the best of my knowledge, has there been sufficient funds in the
hands of the Treasurer to pay our orders; and for this reason the
Commissioners were compelled to berrow money to stop the clam-
or ot the creditors from time to time.

L. 7. By the minutes of the Board of January 20th, 1859, there
appears to be allowed, A. Saunders, $146 for expenses in going
cast after money. Can you explain what money he went after,
and what the said expenses were ?

A. The Commissioners wished to borrow money ata lower
rate of interest to pay off all indebtedness, so that the interest re-
ceived from the State on warrants should pay the interest on the
money borrowed. We had learned that money was abundant east,
at lower rates than it was west. The Commissioners, therefore,
employed Col. Sannders to visit the east to negotiate a loan, agree-
ing to pay his expenses, which amounted to $146. I will add, that
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he failed to get only about $10,000. Mr. Saunders went east the
last of November 1858, and our indebtedness then to him, was
about $17,000, and several thousands to the hands.

L. 8. Do you know anything more about the subject matter
under investigation, that will be of any service, or throw any
light, whatever, upon it ?

A. T have been familiar with the progress of the work en the
building, for nearly five years. I believe that all' the other Com-
missioners, the Treasurer, and his agents, the Secretary, the Bu-
perintendent and all others immediately interested, in any way,
have in all things acted towards the State, with strict honesty and
fidelity, and have, to the best of their ability, so discharged their
. duties, as to promote the highest interests ot the State, in the erec-
tion of the building. I do not believe that either one ot them, has
ever, knowingly, misapplied a single dollar. I believe that the
building, when completed, is no more—no less—than the wants ot
the State demand, at a low cost.

4. 9. Do you pay the Treasurer, or his agents, for receiving
and paying out the funds ? It so, state how much.

A. The Board have never paid any salary to the Treasurer, or
his agent, for his or their services. The Treasurer was informed
at the time of his appointment, that he would be appointed on the
condition that he would receive and pay out the funds, without
compensation, and on this condition he accepted the office.

CHARLES 8. OLARKE.

Additional testimony of Dr. Clarke:

1.10. Did you sign the report of the Commissioners, of 1858-91
It not, why? -

A. T will state, in reply, that Judge Johnstone was not present
at the last meeting of the Board immediately preceding the session
of the Legislature of 1858-9. At this time the report should have
been written and singed. Judge Johnstone was Secretary of the
Board until the appointment of Judge Edwards. I expected that
he would write the report, and I have been informed that he did
write the report; and I have been informed that he did write it at
Fort Madison, but I did not have an opportunity to sign it, and
did not see it until some time after it was published.

CHARLES 8. CLARKE.
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“EXHIBIT G

BurrLineron, MArcu 2p, 1860.
To the Hon. Committee appointed to investigate the affairs of the
Lunatic Asylum at Mount Pleasant :
I find, on examination of the plans of the building, that there is
wanted, first, four steam boilers 48 inches diameter, two flues 28

fOUE TORE. WUME. Ji's - v, hok e - PO 0« o nh SULITS L e ouitiamiy . $4,000 00
1 hot water boiler, with condensing pipe.... ......... 1,000 00
1790 BOINE DOWEE SORARS . ... 18 L. s da s e sbinsimeens TRRS 1,500 00
0000 Snok of Inckh PIDS. . ... cosiveeiies coenaevagany 12,500 00
600 feet of six inch cast pipe....... .. ... ... 000l 600 00
Steam tresses and fixtures........ccccviiaiiiniiiaian 5,000 00
IRRRR P TO8 BREICY, . .o o s 55 a ke oisamns o Hahisp s nime 1,800 00
Two hot water and one relieftank................... 700 00
Pumps, cold water pipe, tan and cold air conductor. ... . 4,500 00
Stock case and pipe to s8mMe. ... ..o iven i iiain s 1,500 00
Putting up the work, estimated about........ ........ 6,000 00

$39,100 00

I believe the above to be as low as the work can be done, in

carrying out the present plan.
O. HENDREE.

Charles Hendree, of lawful age, being duly sworn, doth depose
and say, to-wit:

I. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
you resided where you now reside, and what is your occupation ?

A. Am forty-six years of age—reside in Burlington—have re-
sided there 18 years—am a machinist and foundryman.

7. 2. Have you made any examination and estimates of the
cost of the necessary and essential heating apparatus, tanks, water
pipes, &c., for the Hospital tor the Insane, in Mt. Pleasant? If
so, state what those estimates are?

A, 1 have; and the result of my examination, and the estimates
made, are hereto attached, and marked  Exhibit C.” :

1. 3. In your opinion, is an immediate appropriation, sumcxex.xt
to cover said estimates, necessary and indispensable to put said
Hospital for the Insane in a condition suitable for the reception of
patients ¢
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A. Ttis. 1 see no way in which the building can be used with-
out these necessary fixtures; anything less would be money thrown
away. Having furnished similar fixtures, in part, to a like Insti-
tution in Wisconsin, I eonsider myself competent to express the

above opinion.
CHAS. HENDREE.

M. K. Brown, of lawful age, being duly sworn, made answers
to the following questions, to-wit:

/. How old are you, and how long have yon resided where you
now reside ?

A, I am fifty years of age, and have resided in Mt. Pleasant
near three years.

1. Have you had any business transaction with the Insane Asy-
lum situated at Mt. Pleasant, or with any of its officers? If so,
state what it was?

A. I have owned some of the Asylum checks—from $100 to
$250, which I sold to A. & W. A. Saunders, at a discount of ten
per cent. A part of the transaction was made about one year ago,
and a part about 18 months since. T understood that I would get
the money for an order, either $100 or $110, for a horse 1 sold,
when I called for it, as it was repesented to me as good as cash ;
but after T got it, Col. Saunders informed me there was no money
in the Treasury. I am not of the opinion that any orders were
discounted by Ool. Saunders, whilst there was money in the Treas-
ury. M. K. BROWN.

James Kelly, of lawful age, being qualified, made answers to
the following questions, to-wit:

I. How old are you, and how long have you resided where you
now reside ?

A. Iam thirty years of age, and have resided in Henry county
over four years.

I. Have you ever had any business transaction with the Insane
Asylum, of this city, or with any of its officers? if so, state what
it was. :

A. T farnished over $5,000 worth of eut stone for the Asylam,
and got paid in checks at their face, up to Sept., 1857, the amount
being about $3,000. I presented some checks since that, to Saun-
ders’ banking house, and was told by Col. Saunders that he did

‘v
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not like to take my checks at ten per cent discount, but would loan

me some money at 1} per cent per month, which he did, to the

amount ot $430; the checks were paid within a month of the time.
JAMES KELLY.

Charles Kellogg, of lawful age, being duly qualitied, deposed as
tollows, to-wit :

I. How old are you, and how long have you resided where you
now reside ?

A. I am thirty years of age, and have resided in Henry county
over five years last past.

I. Have you ever had any business transaction with the Insane
Asylum, of this city, or any of its officers ? It so, state what it was.

A. I have cut stone tor the Insane Asylum, to the amount of
several thousand dollars, and received Asylum checks for pay. I
got par for the most of them, and was discounted at the rate of
five per cent on some, at the bank of Col. Saunders, except one
small check ot $14 10, which I received $12 for. I have no reason
to believe that checks were discounted when there was money in

the Treasury.
CHARLES KELLOGG.

S. M. Bailey, of lawful age, being duly qualified, made answers
to the following interrogatories, to wit: . ‘

How old are you and how long have you resided where youn
now reside ?

I am fifty two years of age, and have resided in Henry County
tor seven years last past. . L

Have you had any business, either directly or indirectly, with
the Insane Hospital at Mt. Pleasant, or with the officers thereof?

I cut and delivered rock from the year 1857, up to 1st of Au-
gust, 1858, amounting to from $5,000 to $10,000 worth, for which
I received Hospital checks and got them cashed at their face at
the Treasury, all but about $200, whick was discounted by A.
Saunders at 5 per cent discount. I was told at the time th{ero,wal

no money in the Treasury. ‘
4 8. M. BAILEY.

1. 2. Have you any reason to believe that Asyllmwcheoks'
were at any time discounted by A. & W. A. Saunders, or any
6
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other party or parties when there were funds in the Treasury,
with which to pay the same?

A. 1 have none. My means of knowledge are good, from be-
ing frequently in at said banking house, and on intimate terms
with the Messrs. Saunders. I have every reason also, to believe
that Saunders borrowed the money with which they shaved the
orders above alluded to.

S. M. BAILEY.

Wm. H. Taylor, of, lawful age, being duly sworn, testified as
follows, to wit:

Z. What is your age, place of residence, and how long have
you resided where yom now reside!

A. Am 43 years of age—reside in Mt. Pleasant,
here three years.

1. 2. Have you ever had any business transaction with the
Insane Hospital in this place, or with any of its officers 7 If so,
state what, when it was, who paid you, and what kind of funds
you received ?

A. Have had some dealings with them. Sold some harness
and repaired some for the Hospital Superintendent, and charged
the same to the Asylum, amounting in all to about $100. I re-
ceived checks at different times, for this sum. 1 also purchased
and traded for Asylum checks. One check I received, of $185,
tor hair, used in plastering. That check I presented to the bank
of Messrs. Saunders, and was offered Keokuk serip and Lagrange,
Georgia, money in payment. I declined receiving such money,
and disposed of the check to Messrs. Barclay, Ogg & Swan, for
its tace.  All the checks I received directly from the Asylum, ex-
cept this one, I got cashed without discounting, at Saunders bank.
[ think it was in the summer of 1858. I traded for about $35
more of Asylum checks, for which I paid their face, and traded
the same for goods, at their face. I wanted the goods and there
was no money in the Treasury to pay checks. I donot know that
there was any money in the Treasury at the time of presenting
the $185 check.

4. Did you or did you not know that the paper money which
you named above, was par currency ¢

A. It was passing here for par currency.

W. H. TAYLOR.

Resided

i 4
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John Syp, of lawful age, being duly sworn as the law directs,
deposes and says as follows, to wit:

1. 1. What is your age, where do you reside, and how long
have you lived where you now live ?

A. I am about fifty—live in Henry County, near Mt. Pleas-
ant—have lived here some nine years.

4. 2. Have you had any business directly or indirectly with
the Insane Hospital at this place, or its officers ¥ If so, state what
it has been ?

A. I have indirectly had a good many Hospital checks
which I got second hand, which I presented at the banking house
of A. & W. A. Saunders, as agents for the Treasurer of said Hos-
pital, a part of which were paid off at their face; a smaller part
of which were discounted; but Col. Saunders invariably told me
when I presented those checks for payment, if there was not
money in the Treasury, that it I would wait until there was
money received into the Treasury, I would get the tull face of my
orders. All the money I received for those checks was par money.
So far as I am or have been concerned with these checks, I have
had no reason to complain. I never had to discount more than
10 per cent, and I think some of them as low as five per cent.

JOHN SYP.

John 8. Bartroff, of lawful age, being duly sworn, doth depose
and say, to-wit :

/. 1. Have you had any business transaction with the Hospi-
tal for the Insane, or with any of its officers. If so, when,
where, who with, who paid you, and what kind of funds did you
receive ? ; ;

A. T have never had any transactions either with the Hospital,
its officers, checks, or any thing else.

1. 2. Have you at any time said that you believed the Treas-
urer of the Hospital tor the Insane, or A. & W. A. Saunders, or
any others connected with either party, had discounted orders on
the Treasurer when there was funds in the Treasury, vzith wh.ieh
to pay the same ¢ If so, what were the grounds for said opinion
or belief. ' (

A. Tt ever I said so, it was upon the remarks of other per-
sons, a part of whom have been examined before this Committee,
and have here stated that they have noreason to believe that such
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discounts were ever made; and as my remarks were made upon
their assertions, I of course must say, that I have no reason to be-
lieve they ever did ; everything I know, or have heard, has been
hearsay.
JOHN 8. BARTROFF.,

This is to certify that the above is a true copy of the testimony
of John 8. Bartroff, given before the Joint Committee tor investi-
gating the affairs of Hospital for the Insane, in Mt. Pleasant. The
original having been taken in pencillings,

Attest : WM. F. DAVIS,
Clerk for said Com.

———

Henry Winslow, of lawful age, being duly sworn, testified as fol-
lows, to wit : ‘

4. 1. What is your age, place of residence—how long have yon
resided where you now reside, and what is your occupation

A. Tam 53 years of age—reside in Mt. Pleasant—have resi-
ded here about five years. Builder and contractor.

Z. 2. What have you been engaged at during your residence
here; and how did you become so engaged %

A. Have been engaged in the erection of a State Hospital for
the Insane in this place, and was employed by the Commissioners
to superintend the erection of such Hospital.

1. 3. Who was the Architect for said Hospital ?

4. Jonathan Preston of Boston, Massachusetts ; and the plan
as drawn by him, was adopted by the Board of Commissioners tor
such Hospital.

.1. 4. Po you know whether any estimates were ever made by
:;x;lutA;c:ntect, or by any other person? If so, state all you know

A. I know there never was any itemized estimate made, or at
least none ever came to my knowledge ; a comparative estimate
of my own was all that I ever knew of. My generally expressed
opinion was, “that I hoped to get it in tor $300,000.” We com-
menced in favorable times for the erection of such a building, so

‘far as money matters were concerned. The next season a panic

seized our people from the financial crisis which caun
: sed our labor-
ers to think that they would not get their, pay. :

I expected when I came here to find competiti
. petition among all
branches of industry. But upon my arrival, I foundjthat wenvgrere

..y

A
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compelled to work at great disadvantage, owing to location, re-
moteness from mills and from building material. We were there-
fore compelled to furnish our own Engine, Planing Machine, Brick
Machines, at our expense, which would not have been incurred in
other and more favorable localities ; and which necessarily retard-
ed the progress of the work. I expected to get the building orig-
inally designed, (the material of which was brick,) in for $300,000.
But a charge of material from brick to stone, was deemed abso-
lutely necessary, for causes to wit:

The material for making brick was very ordinary, and not as
good as I expected to find; also the tacilities for making brick,
that were suitable for the outer walls, were very poor. The change
from brick to stone was made at my suggestion, after the founda-
tion wall was laid, or nearly laid in the season of 1857. And that
change was based upon the opinion that it would facilitate the
work and make a more substantial building. My estimate to the
Commissioners, of the cost of the Hospital, after this change in the
material was about $360,000. The report of the Commissioners
nade two years ago I never saw before it was made to the Legis-
lature. I never gave the Commissioners any items of a particular
nature, which would indicate that'the building could be finished
tor $100,000 more, upon which they conld have based their report
of 1858. 1 do not recollect of ever having given an opinion as to
what said Hospital would cost, in presence ot Edward Johnstone.
I feel sure that I did state to Gov. Grimes that said Hospital would
cost my general estimate as above expressed ; but after the change
from brick to stone was made, I told Gov. Grimes that 1 yet hoped
to get the building in for $300,000, from the progress we were
then making with said building, at a cheaper or more economical
ratg than I had anticipated. I cannot say that I ever expressed
this opinion to Dr. Olarke when Gov. Grimes was present. I have
however, stated the same in substance to him, when alone, in or-
dinary conversation. :

1. 5. Under what circumstances did you write the letter over
your signature, addressed to Gov. Grimes, dated August 14th,
1859 ¢

A. It was written in reply to a letter received by me from Gov.
Grimes. I was not aware that the letter would be made public. 1
thought the letter was a letter of inquiry about the Asylum build-
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ing proper. Had T suppused that my letter was to be made pub-
lie, I should have been more explicit in my statements. I have
seen gome of the newspapers of the State which did not give a cor-
rect copy of my letter. I therein stated that about $20,000 would
finish the Asylum building ; not including machinery, pipe, &e.
HENRY WINSLOW.

The tourth depesition ot M. L. Edwards, in the matter of the
Insane Hospital at Mt. Pleasant, of lawtul age, being duly sworn,
says upon his oath:

What is your age, where do you reside, and what is you occu-
pation ?

A. Iam 49 years of age. I have resided in this place where
I now reside, twelve years. I have been employed for the last
two and a half years as Secretary of the Board of Commissioners
of the Insane Hospital at this place, and have kept the books and
accounts ot the institution.

Do you know why the amount of interest received by the
Treasurer of the Board was not exhibited in the report of the
Commissioners made to the present Legislature ? State what you
know and believe in regard to the matter.

4. 1know not why said interest was not exhibited in the re-
port. The Commissioners failed to hold a meeting here in the
fall prior to the meeting of the Legislature. In their absence,
and at the request of the Chairman, I wrote out the report. In
preparing it I made out two sheets marked Exhibit A.” The
one published, as part of the report, appears on page 8. The
?ther was exactly like it, with the exception that the amount of
interest received from the State on State warrants was added to
the total amount of appropriations on one side, and the same
amount was added to the interest account on the other side, both
sheets exhibiting the same balance. These two sheets wit,h the
balance of the report, as I prepared it, were handed by me to Mr.
\:Vin.slow, Supt., who, as he informed me, handed the same to the
Chairman of the Board, on the cars at this place on his wiy to the

Capitol, a short time before the meeting of the Legislature. I

hn.d 1o conversation or communication with either of the Commis-
ssioners in regard_to the propriety of exhibiting or not exhibiting
said interest in said report, I made outthe two sheets as I stated,

e 4
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because, in conference with Mr. Winslow in regard to the matter
to be embraced in the report, the question was raised whether
the Commissioners would wish to make such an exhibit or not.

I suppose the leading reason why the Commissioners did not make
such exhibit was a fear that it might operate to influence the
Legislature against an appropriation to complete the Hospital.
What balances do the accounts of the Treasurer of the Board
show from time to time, as rendered to the Board ?
A. They are as follows:

In favor of Treasurer. Againgl the Treasurer.

Dosanber b v ESBYL (adi o mularsied. draitlh el « $13,662 45
bril BB, s o v ¢ biintines sl s KN 18,871 43
May B0y l888ud v atite cas 1) . $4,119 70
JuRe 1, 1888 Ll il v s 13,937 57
June 18, ABEBGL. v da  bwdtng s 20,969 98
August 1, 1888 isin . aut cuasiass 22,3568 02
September 17, 1858 ............ 21,102 68
December 1,1858 .............. 17,227 98
January 17, 1859......c0...00i. 34,364 73
prildpdB889. L lgenlichs vt 49,037 29
May 19, 1859..........coccnnn 13,493 72
Augnst 11,1859.......0csauini. 6,729 35
Since report to the egislature.
February 14, 1860....:.0004 P (X -

The balances priorjto May 19, 1858, include some Commission-
ers drafts on which the money had not, at the time, been received,
embracing all from Nos. 4 to 18 inclusive. The others are set

forth as cash banlances. M. L. EDWARDS.

Subseribed and sworn to before me the 5th March, 1860.
EROY G. PALMER, Notary Publie.

George A. Stone, of lawful age, being duly sworn, dpi‘.h depose

and say : \ .
1. 1. What is your age, place of residence, and how long

have you resided where you now reside !
A. Am 27 years of age, reside in Mt. Pleasant, and have re-

sided here over nine years.
7. 2. What is your business, and how long have you been so

engaged ?



A. Have been acting as Cashier for A. & W. Saunders,
since the organization of their banking house, in the epring
ot 1856.

[ 8. Has the banking house of A. & W. A. Saunders acted
as agent for the Treasurer jof the State Lunatic Hospital in pay-
ing out tunds appropriated for the erection of said building ? If
so, how long have they so acted ?

A. They have so acted since the organization of their bank-
ing house.

/. 4. State whether at any time when there was money in the
Trersury or in the Bank belonging to the Treasury of said Hospi-
tal, any warrants or checks, commonly known as Hospital checks
were discounted at any rate? If so, state to what amount, or what
rate ?

A. There were none discounted at any time when there was
money in the Treasury, either from the State or from other gour-
ces, provided for such Hospital.

/. 5. Have the credits’of the State at any time, by deposits in
said Bank been equal to the indebtedness of said Hospital to said
Bank, subsequently to any discounting of Hospital checks ?

A. They never have.

7. 6. What has been the highest rate ot interest paid upon any
loans negotiated with said Bank, for the use of said Hospital ¢

A. One and one-third per cent per month.

I. 7. ‘Has any money been provided, through said banking
house, to carry on the erection of said Hospital, at a less rate of
interest than one and one-third per eent? It so, state what amount
and at what interest ?

A. There has been—§10,000, at one time, which, I think, was
borrowed by Mr. Alvin Saunders in Harford, Conn., at six per
cent per annum, made payable in New York City. This sum was
charged to the account of the Hospital, at the same rate of interest
which Mr. Saunders paid, with express charges, &c., added, mak-
ing perhaps seven per cent which the Asylum paid for said sum.

I. 8. Has said banking firm ever discounted Hospital checks ?
It so, state what amount, and at what rate of discount ¢

A. They have discounted, in all, $178,096 92. The rate of
disconnt has varied—I should think the average would be less than
10 per cent. Have sometimes discounted as low as 24 and 5 per

cent, and a very few over 10 per cent—none to exceed 15.

-
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I. 9. Has there ever at any time, been any preference given to
any party, or parties, holding Hospital checks, over others, in their
payment, by said banking firm, as agent for the Hospital Treasurert

A. None, that'T now recollect of. :

I. 10. State if at any time said banking firm has had more
moneys on hand than they could have used at the usual rate of
interest, outside or apart tfrom said Hospital ¢ also, what their usual
rate of interest has been !

A. We could have, at any time, loaned all the money in the
bank, at our usual rate of interest, one and one-half per cent per
month ¢

I. 11. Please state it, in your opinion, the profit made upon
snch discounted checks was equal to the profit which might have
been made by loaning the funds of said banking firm at the nsnal
rate of discount? "

A. In my opinion, it would have been more profitable to the
bank, to have used the amount which we did in discounting checks,
tor other and our ordinary business. :

I. 12. From your knowledge, and with reference to the books
of A. & W. A. Saunders, can you state the date when gaid firm
received money fromn the State Treasury, the amounts, and how
received ?

A. I can, by reference to the books of gaid firm, and herewith
present a statement made from said books, 113arked « Exhibit D,”
and made part of these depositions. @

4. What has been the average annual ifidebtedness of said
Hospital to A. & W. A. Saunders?

A. I think about $20,000. 3
/. What has been the largest sum of indebtedness of said Hos-

pital Treasury to said Banking Firm ? And what do they now owe
said Firm ? :

A. The largest amount has been over $69,000; very nearl,y
$70,000 at one time, and this was prior to th.e time of sau.i firm’s
discounting Hospital checks. The present indebtedness is about
%8000 ; over $7000, but nearer &8000. ' ‘

/. What kind of tunds have been generally paid out by A. &
W. A. Saunders, to pe'rsons presenting checks, either for payment

i tt
® jll.sml‘::-lior to the time when the Treasurer had a debit balance,
7
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'11‘ think gold was paid when demanded ; after the funds of the
T;(::asury were exhaunsted currency was paid on Hospital checks
- is eurrency x‘vas par in this city, and in Burlington. No distinc:
ion was made in regard to kind of currency paid between checks
discounted and checks paid at their face.
!onl. toDll)(il?:i’(‘la F;l}:'m ever discount said checks when yon had rea-
ere was money in the St y
would be, to pay said checks ? 4 g 0 upie bk
A. I never knew when
3 n there was money i
; y in the Treasu
the State. I do not believe they ever did so discount. :

/. Hav : i e
Soript e you ever paid out Keokuk, Wapello, or other City

<A, T cannot now recolleet. We have handled some of Wap.

ello and Keokuk Seri
p—but never have paid out curre
. . . ? l ;
;v;)as got par in this city and Burlington. T will say here :ny tr}::
m:le or making a difference in discounting checks at a‘diﬁ'{erent—
th%,e‘so(l)ne as low as 24 per cent and some at 15 per cent wérc
p: ;57 r:; gear:zrhwould ;}:,;rhaps present a check for discount,’dated
c ; er would present one dated sa ;
wou y March *58 ; t
ﬁr:t;nlanbwluld get his discounted at 24, and the one holdin’g 3::
o oo :;1 :ccks :(:;Ldli?;(;i to paiy perhaps ten per cent, because the
) »aid tirst when the State Treasur in fi
:;rltglat purpose ; and it I could afford to buy Marcin‘;';;énclfll:"‘:s
per cent. discount, I could equally afford to buy the ones flus

ted October first at a muc
A yuch less ra e of diseount ; i
(the oldest checks,) would be paid much sopner st

‘ GEO. A, STONE, .
Casuier, A. & W. A. SAUNDERS, -

EXHIBIT D.

BTATEMENT r L (CE
OF MONIES RECEIVED FOR OREDIT T TREASURER LU

il NATIC ASYLUM.

October 30. By bala i
: - nce, bhei ML) - ;
s Tl oy , 1g amount received from C. 8, Clarke,

N?V(:;nnber 26. Counniss.iéx.l;r:s‘ order I\u 4 ........ 9 (";’?; 32

0 do d - 8 ‘

sk o 00" Mg, AY N 5,000 00

April 22, do , Xy R PR 10,600 00
’

'

) |

August 13. Commissioners order No. T.......

August 18. do do do 8.......
do do do do “Cdo 1\ HGARY I
do do do do *det PO

1857.

January 9. do do - ‘do"" I, LV
do do do do Q619 L. QN
do do do de’ ‘@@ oYy T
do do do do ‘do 140000
do do do do 'do Ehoeis s
do do do do do 16 ......

April 23. do do- do AT ceors i

August 1. do do do 18.......

1858.

March 30. do do do 19wueik W
do do do do da, 20 K.k s
do do do do 4o, ‘Fl- vt

10,000 OV
5,000 00
5,000 00
2,000 00

6,166 b4
10,000 00
10,000 00
10,000 00
10,000 00
10,000 00
40,000 00
4,171 88

9,000 00
2,614 10
499 80

——

$152,248 34

Less 2 warrants on hand at this date and unpaid.
(These two were paid, and are credited June 8,
1858, and numbered 7478 and 7480, vide account
current at that date.) 2(\varrants @ $5,000 each,

10,000 00

I S

May 10. By cash received trom Saline Fund, (by Ex.)
June 8. By cash on warrant 7478,(by Ex.). .5,000 00

And interest on SaME. ... ..o 537 90

By cash on warrant No. 7480, ....5,000 00
[nterest On SAME. ... . o iie e 482 H¥

Aug. 2. By Treasurer Henry County..........co
Aug. 4. By Treasurer Des Moines Couuti ..........
By cash on warrant No. 710, (by Ex)1,651 70

Interest on BAME. ... «xoxste s ors 24 49

By cash by Ex. on warrant No. 712..6,680 33
[nterest on SAMe. ... .ocvcc s 103 78

Oct. 29. Cash paid on warrant No. 194, Doe. Olarke
1859. .
Jan. 4. By cash by Express, warrant No. 1547. .. ..
Feb. 17. 0 o o do 1720......
Feb. 28. By cash, bal. w’nt no. 1194, (by Ex.) 6,559 45
Interest on same.. ... ... 206 96

April 8. By cash on warrant 872, (by Ex.). 12,960 14
[nterest on same. .. ..o oo 720 00

April 21. By cash by Ex. for Jan. & Feb. estimates,
May 7. By cash warrant No. 711, (by Ex.) 5,045 22
do do do 1157, do

qo “dor e 140:138P, suisfarg 0,008.86

$142,248 31
1,292 45

5,537 90
5,482 53
3,000 00
3,000 00
1,676 19

6,684 11
6,000 00

4,463 32
2,437 06

6,766 41

13,680 14
3.950 00

7,117 68.
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Interest onabove............ 1,065 81 22,234 47

June 29. By cash, warrant No. 1367,(by Ex.) 6 195 65
Interest O BB dw - <o xo v 3 28 6,488 88

Aug. 5. By cash, warrant No. 2056, (by Ex.) 3 253 97
Interest R R 32 55 3,286 52
By cash by Express, warrant 2146.. ... .... 1,256 27

By mterest received on warrants entered on
acc’t current, May 8, 1858. S 6,545 31

$245,229 90

THE STATE OF 10WA, lSS

Hexry County. \
Be it known by all whom the same doth or may eoncern :

That I\ Le Roy G. Paliner, a Notary Public, in and for the said
Oounty of Henry and State ot Towa, duly appointed, commissioned
and sworn, and dwelling in the town of Mt. Pleasant, in said Coun-
ty, do hereby certity that the following named persons to wit: A.
R. H. Allen, Charles Kellogg, Jesse Smith, Wm. H. Taylor, J. M.
Dawson, John Syp, A. B. Porter, 8. M. Bailey, R. 8. Scott, John
8. Bartroff, Peter Melcher, Eugene Winslow, Henry Winslow,
Dominique Dombun, Abraham Fletcher, E. L. Penn, M. L. Ed-
wards, E. Beers, Geo. A. Stone, John Eshelman, Wm. R. Hill,
John Smith, James B. Shaw, E. S. Hill, James Kelley, Edward
Johnstone, Ralph P. Lowe, Charles 8. Clarke, and Charles Hen-
dree, who were respectively brought betore the Legislative Com-
mittee, appointed to investigate the atfairs of the Insane Asylum
at said Mt. Pleasant, during their organized session in said town,
commencing on Monday the 27th of February, and ending Satur-
day the 3d of March, A. D., 1860, as witnesses, and whose names
were respectively subseribed to their depositions taken before said
Committee, were by me first duly sworn to tell the truth, the whole
truth and nothing but the truth of the matters and things then un-
der investigation by said Committee ; and being so sworn their
evidence respectively was reduced to writing by said Committee,
and after hearing the same read was subsecribed by each witness
respectively.

T3 YR In Tesrimony Waereor, I have hereto sub-
L. 8. seribed my name, and aftixed my Notarial Seal
( ——~) of office this 3d day of March, A" D., 1860,

LE ROY G. PALMER,‘ No&ary Public.
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e e . e ——— R o —
n°° s ONERS' ORDERS. | FUND DEAWN. = STS|  wammawys | WARRANTS, AUDT.’S WAR'NTS. | AUDITOR'S WARNTS.
arch 17, 1855—No. J. .. Saline Fund, P A “95 1REE
“« 17 186 No¥ et 4825 00 & « | T e 3 e e
“ 17,1855—No.8... « “ | 1,500 00 & « | ! « «
Oct’b’r 30, 1855—No.4... « " 2,075 Y | clin RN Nov'r 29 «
Nov’r 26, 1855—No. 5. .. Revenue.. .. ‘ 5,000 001 8,699 Feb’y 27 1856
|  Gsio - g
“ l “
| 6,847 “ 17 &
‘ ?48 « 1T o«
Aprif22, 1856—No. 6.. ... Revenue.. . . .| 10,000 00 6:3;3 : }; ::
| 1 “ “
| gﬁs “ }; “
6,853 “ 17 ©
b 2089 il A |
,0 ........ m),“ : ; -
: 7...| 10,000 00 041 o 2 g ¥
August 13, 1856—No. 7. ..|Revenue.. ... A «{' 7042 :‘ :: :
‘.
: “ 3w
October 14, 1856—No. §. - Revenue..... 5,000 00;. .. l:y 30 ::
ke 14, 1856—No. 9. . Revenue..... 5,000 00! . 4., + 30 -
“ 14 1856—§o. 10 .;’gwamp lL gl g,(l)gg gg; 7..5 - g -
January 9,1857—No. 11 . Swamp L. F.|
« 9 1857—No. 12 . Revenmo. .. . 10,000 00| 7476 March 16 188
%1857—No. 13. .. 10,000 00.§ i .;h’m 2
o 9,1857--No. 14 .| 10,000 00 3 March 80 ©
’ , | 7,479 :
v | 7480 June T
“ 9,1857—No. 15. & .| 10,000 00{ 7481 Mareh 18 «
‘ : r7 72 Sess8eet e
r e B A
' g “w - M
9,1857—No. 16.| 10,000 00 7, lﬂ,& b B e
’ 4+ Ocolr 30 1887
B Y o
ij | (7,92 'eb’y
| | ! R
i —Ne.1.... * i4ooooooi 1 u".;"'i, a
April 27, 1857—Noe. vaes] o] Y 7,95 o 0 e
“ f | 7y “« 18
| L;, “ 16 « : ‘
' . ; » August 19 1857
August 1, 1857—No. 18..|Saline Fund..! 4,171 88| g 3 * sre et » SRR ]
Dec'r 3, 1857—No. 19. .|Revenue.. ..., 9,000 00 { 8 1 gy
h 5, 1858—No.20..| «  ....| 9,614 10
Mg 5 1835 _No. 91 Galine Fund.,| 499 80| 1886 ¥
“« 93, 1858—No. 22.. Rev‘?nue.. by },gg? %(5) }: “
May 29, 1858—No.23..| 181 79 30 1850
« 22, 1858—No. 24.. . 6,580 33 1858
& 22, 1858——-§0 gg . " 11!028 74: T “i‘iﬁ
June 10, 1858—No. 26.. : 960 14
July, 1858—No. 27.. 12,9 I ll: lr..‘“ i
G “ 58
August, 1858—No. 28.. 13,117 | a.) “uz 2
. |
. 50 45 :
Sept. 21, 1858—No. 29.. ‘, 1:’305 86 : 1«'
Qotebar, - 1888—No. 80,4 =7 6,195 65 , 27 1858
November, 1858——1&0. e N . 4463 32 4463 32 28 1859
December, 1858—No. 33 . & . i 2,437 06 (& 2,437 06 1=
January, 1859—No.28..| [ - ohgg 77| 108 918677 1n o«
March,  1859—No. as | © | 1,063 23| 1,909 1,063 23 1n o«
1859-No. 35« | 3953 01| sgs6| 3,253 97 18 «
June, 1869, N0, 36,37 435 | nese 21l gme 1286 %1
July 7, 1868—_No.a8. .} . 1 1l 0 AR L D LR py
Sept., 1859—No. 40 an “ 1,533 72 6 1,583 72...... - 28 1856
Dea, 1860—No. 88...0ree] = el WY 6,993 2,070 30
No order drawn. ... ..ooaefoeerns i pempg 28
........... s254,T18481 ... [s236,788 7810422
Total.... «cocves savsels %



